.

II.

SECTION 5310 - EY8 APPLICATION
ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS AND
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES

October 1, 2017 - September 30, 201

Applicant Information

5 NECEIV

Organijzation:

Pueblo of San Felipe

Contact Person Name and Title:

Tom Teegarden, Tribal Administrator

Mailing Address:

P.C. Box 4339

Ciry, State, ZIP:

San Felipe Pueblo, NM 87001 7

Physical Address: 127 Hagen Road, San Felipe, NM 87001
Phone and Cell Numbers: (505) 867-3381 Direct: (505) 771- 6644 Cell (505) 862-3543
FAX Number: (505) 867-3323

E-mail Address:
(Required)

TTeegarden@sfpueblo.com

Regional Planning Transportation NERTPO MRTRPO SERTPO SWRTPO
Organization: (circle one) . NPRTPO NWRTPO SCRTPO
Applicant Signature and Date V\/\ L’\—B" S ! E

Signed: %\?’(’lw“’

Please Print Name and Title:

Michael T. Sandoval Governor Pueblo of San Felipe

DUNS Number *

038306643

*In addition to including your agency’s DUNS Number, please provide a print screen of

your agency DUNS Number from the following website: https://www.sam.gov

Summary of Budget Request
Please enter the dollar amount of and a description of the vehicle(s) you wish to purchase below.
[NOTE: Section 5310 grants are for capital (vehicles) only]

Total Federal Share Local Share
*Capital (80/20) $106,856 $85,500.80 $21,375.20
TOTAL $106,856 $85,500.80 $21,375.20

Capital Breakdown

Capital to Vendor (Required for Non-Profits) | $106,856 | $85,500.80 | $21,375.20
List vendor if utilizing Capital to Vendor
Capital to Subgrantee
*TOTAL should equal ‘Capital’ amt. above $106,856 $85,500.80 $21,375.20

Capital to Vendor - When you purchase capital using a state approved price agreement. You will
make a check to the awarded vendor for the 20% local share, and send the check to NMDOT's Transit




and Rail Division. At delivery, your check is given to the vendor, and NMDOT is billed for the

difference.

Capital to Subgrantee - When you purchase any approved capital item that that is not on a state
price agreement, including large buses, radios, and other requested capital. You will initially pay
100% of the purchase. Upon submitting the appropriate documentation to the Transit and Rail

Division, you will be reimbursed 80%.

CAPITAL TO SUBGRANTEE OPTION IS NOT AVAILABLE FOR NON-PROFIT

ORGANIZATIONS
II1. Financial Information
A)CAPITAL BUDGET
ELIGIBLE CAPITAL COSTS
2016 2017 2018
ACTUAL APPROVED PROJECTED
ITEM DESCRIPTION EXENDITURES BUDGET EXPENDITURES
3-01-20 Radios & Base Stations $0.00 $0.00
3-01-25 Other Capital Expenses $0.00 $ 0.00
3-01-40 Surveillance System $0.00 $ 0.00
3-01-45 15 Passenger Van (W/Lift) $ 0.00 $0.00
3-01-30 15 Passenger Van (W/Ramp) $0.00 $0.00 $106,856
3-01-60 Mobile Radios $ 0.00 $0.00
TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS $0.00 $0.00 $106,856
VEHICLE DISPOSITION PROCEEDS $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $0.00
NET CAPITAL (Total Capital less $106,856

Vehicle Disposition Proceeds)

LOCAL SHARE SOURCES (specify)

The 20% local share will be provided by the tribal council per resolution

TOTAL LOCAL SHARE (20%)

** $21,375.20

FEDERAL SHARE (80%)

**  $85,500.80

B) OPERATING BUDGET: INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THE SPACE BELOW IS USED

TO GET A BASELINE OF OPERATING FUNDS THAT YOU PROVIDE TO YOUR 5310 ELIGIBLE

PROGRAM.

THESE FUNDS ARE NOT DIRECTLY RELATED TO THE CAPITAL GRANT YOU ARE APPLYING FOR.




2016* 2017 2018
ACTUAL APPROVED PROJECTED
ITEM DESCRIPTION EXENDITURES BUDGET EXPENDITURES
Drivers Salaries/Fringe Benefits $ 54,000.00 $ 55,080.00 $ 56,181.60
Support Staff/Fringe Benefits $ 47,000.00 $ 47,940.00 $ 48,898.80
Fuel, Lubricants, Tires $ 47,391.24 $ 48,339.06 $ 49,305.85
Maintenance $ 15,355.08 $15,662.18 $15,975.43
Insurance $ 15,000.00 $ 15,300.00 $ 15,606.00
Other (Please explain) $ 5,000.00 $ 5,100.00 $ 5,202.00
TOTAL TRANSPORTATION $ 183,746.32 $187,421.25 $191,169.67
[ NON-TRANSPORTATION | $133,185.22 | $135,848.92 | $138,565.90 |
[ TOTAL EXPENDITURES | $316,931.54 | $323,270.17 | $329,735.57 |

* Prorate expenditures to end of the current fiscal year

L. Please list all other non-transportation services your agency provides.

The Elderly Services Program provides services that promote healthy aging and quality
access to resources within Pueblo boundaries and in communities outside Pueblo
boundaries including services in Albuquerque, Santa Fe and as well local towns and
villages located throughout Sandoval County. Elderly Services include the following.
SUPPORTED SERVICES: Assisted transportation; case management; outreach;
homemaker/housekeeping; home visiting; communication services; language
interpretation/translation; advocacy and representation; and recreational and cultural
events. HEALTH PROMOTION AND DISEASE PREVENTION: Health education and
training; monthly health screenings; nutrition education; physical fitness and exercise;
and congregate and home-delivered meal services. CAREGIVER SUPPORT PROGRAM
provides services directly to the caregiver that include: Access assistance; counseling
and support; information services; and supplemental services all of which are focused
on preventing caregiver burn out and stress reduction for unpaid family caregivers
caring for loved ones in their homes.

2. Please list all funding sources and amounts received for both general budget and
transportation budget.

NM State Aging and Long Term Services Department indian Area Agency on Aging - $143,000.00
Federal: Title VI Older Americans Act Grants for Native Americans - $109,690.00
Federal: Title VI Older Americans Act Family Caregiver Support Program - $35,700.00

3. Why do you need this equipment (check all that apply)?

a. Replace existing vehicle(s) (LIST VIN, TYPE, MILEAGE, AND AGE OF EACH
VEHICLE)

Establish service to new area

Add wheelchair capacity to existing vehicles

Increase number of vehicles available for demnand responsive service

Decrease vehicle size for service

Increase vehicle size for service

Improve passenger access to service

®m e Aan o

XX X =




DEArcH KEsSUILs | dDYSICMm IOr AWAard vanagement https://www.sam.gov/portal/SANM/fnavigationalstate=JBINS _rOUA,

Search Results

Current Search Terms: pueblo* of San* felipe*

Your search for "Pueblo* of San* Felipe* " returned the following results...

‘alot
Notice: This printed document represents only the first page of your SAM search results. More results may be avallable. To
print your complete search results, you can download the PDF and print it.
Searc
Entity Status: Active Resul
San Felipe Pueblo Housing Authority Entity
n
DUNS: 141956230 CAGE Code: 5F1Q1 View Detalls  Exclus
Has Active Exclusion?: No DoDAAC: Searc
Expiration Date: 04/04/2017 Delinqguent Federal Debt? No Filter
Purpose of Registration: Federal Assistance Awards Only By Re
Status
Entity Status: Active{f) By Re
PUEBLO OF SAN FELIRE: Type
: 0383 H 2
DUNS: 038306643 CAGE Code: 4CA25 View Details
Has Active Exclusion?: No DoDAAC:
Expiration Date: 12/28/2016 Delinquent Federal Debt? No
Purpose of Registration: Federal Assistance Awards Only
SAM | System for Award Management 1.0 IBM v1.P.50.20160823-0937
wWwws
Note to all Users: This is a Federal Government computer
system. Use of this system constitutes consent to monitoring at all
times.
/ﬂ"

FEPns

lof1l 8/25/2016 9:40 AM



State price agreement for transit vehicles is available at this time (Web link to price agreement
number):

Statewide Transit Vehicle Price Agreement - Agreement 60-00015
htrp://www.generalservices.state.nm.us/uploads/files/SPD/Contracts/60-000-15-
00015%20Transit%20Vehicles.pdf

Agencies have two options for vehicle procurement:
(1) Order vehicle(s) from approved price agreement (Web link above)
(2) Implement your own competitive bid procurement process

Description, quantity, and cost of capital items to be purchased:

Refer to Section 3-01-00-Capital Costs

Quantity = 2

Alistar 22 16 Passenger + 2 Wheelchair Vehicles @ $53,438 each

2016 Pricing per GSA Agreement No. 60-00015 @ $53,438 each * 2 = $106,876 Total

C)Please provide and check item:
1 Copy of Articles of Incorporation
2-__ X Copy of 501(c) 3 Certification (Federal Tribal Certification)

3-__X  Copy of most current audit

4- If transit-related audit findings occurred, copy of corrective action response
submitted to auditor.
5- If a non-profit organization (first time applicants only), copy of procurement

procedures that comply with FTA Circular 4220.
http://www . fta.dot.gov/legislation law/12349 16011 . html

IV. Program Description

A) The service you provide or intend to provide will be (check all that applies):

X | Fixed route
Modified fixed route
X | Demand responsive
X | Section 5310

B) This request for funding will (check all that apply):

start up new services

reduce service from current level
maintain service at current level

X | expand existing service to additional
areas
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C) If applicable, please briefly describe the new or expanded service.

The acquisition of the new vehicles will allow the expansion of transportation
services to: A newly developed sub-division within the Pueblo boundaries;
and approximately 852 age eligible socially isolated clients and clients with
the greatest need. Additional transportation series will be expanded to unpaid
family caregivers to accompany their elders to medical appointments, case
management services, and other appointments requiring assistance advocacy
from family caregivers.

D) Is the program included in the RTPO/MPO Coordinated Public Transit Human Services

Transportation Plan?
YES
X NO

E) 5310 Program

Number of one-way passenger trips per month
Elderly (non-disabled) 1,556
Disabled (including elderly) 728
General Public -0-
TOTAL 1,920
Number of unduplicated 2,284
persons transported per month

Description of Service Area

A) Check the most appropriate description of your community:

Urbanized Area (UZA) or Large Urban areas with population of
200,000 or mare

Small Urban areas with population of 50,000 — 199,999
X Non-urbanized/Rural (50,000 people or less)

B) Please list all the municipalities and counties served by your program:
The following Transportation Services are provided to elders: within the
tribal service area on a daily basis; outside the tribal service area extending
into Sandoval, Bernalillo and Santa Fe Counties. These services are
provided more than five times per month for necessary services and for
accessing resources which are not available within the tribal service area.

C) Please complete the following demographic information for your service area. Fxact counts
are preferred, but estimates are acceptable. For this section, you are describing the same
population two different ways, so your total number of population served by ethnicity



Category should equal the total number of population by eldetly or disabled status.

Ethnicity Category | Population % % Population Elderly/Disabled
Category
Black 0 0 224 | 852 Elderly (non-disabled)
Hispanic 0 0 183 | 695 Persons with Disabilities
(inchuding elderly)
Asian or Pacific 0 0 593 | 2248 Other (everyone else)
Islander
American Indian 3795 100%
or Alaskan Native
White 0 0
Other 0 0
#3795 100% =TOTAL* -
* These totals should equal.

1) Source (if other that US Census Burean):

Pueblo of San Felipe Tribal Enrollment Office

D) When applying for Section 5310 funding as the coordinator of transportation services in
Ppiying g P

your area, complete the section above using your current program information. In addition,

please fill out the following section for the organizations/programs you will serve.

Name of Organization Served Number of People Transported
Pueblo of San Felipe Systems of Care 35
Pueblo of San Felipe Health Clinic 45
Pueblo of San Felipe Housing Auth. 25
Pueblo of San Felipe Family Services 35
Pueblo of San Felipe Dental Clinic 35
Pueblo of San Felipe BHD 35
Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services 852
Pueblo of San Felipe Family 50
Caregiver Program

TOTAL: 1112

E) Please provide and check:

I- _X Mapof Service Area (on 8 X 11 page)
2.

VI. Ridership and Transit System Statistics
A) Complete years that are applicable

Line # Category 2016 2017 2018
Projected
1 Annual Ridership 77 84 1500
2 Annual Mileage
3 Annual Vehicle 1872 1960 2000
Hours




* Prorate statistics to end of FY. Please note that the numbers provided in this section for FY16 and
FY17 are only inclusive of direct transportation services provided under the Elderly Services Program.
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VIIL. Civil Rights

A) Please provide a list of any active law suits or complaints naming your
organization/agency with alleged discrimination on the basis of race, color, sexual
preference, or national origin with respect to service or other transit benefits.

-None

B) Also provide a summary of all civil rights compliance review activities conducted during
the last three (3) years. The summary shall include: N/A

1. Purpose or reason for review;

2. Name of organization performing the review;

3. Summary of findings and recommendations of the review; and
4. Report on the findings and recommendations of the review.

C) Finally, provide a list of any additional transit related funds or applications currently in
place, which will supplement this grant. (Describe any funds you already have that you
plan to use to supplement this grant, and describe any applications you have made for
funds to supplement this grant).

The additional resources available to supplement this grant include:

s Older Americans Act — Title VI Grants for Native Americans -
$109,690.00 (This grant expires in March 2017. In December
2016 we will submit our funding request to renew this grant for
a 3 year period beginning April 2017 through March 2020.)

» Older Americans Act — Family Caregiver Support Program -
$35,700.00 (NM State Grant through June 2017 ... we anticipate
renewal at a 5% reduced funding level.)

* NM Aging and Long Term Services Department Indian Area
Agency on Aging - $ 143,000.00 (State grant subject to 5%
reduction in FY-18.)

Each of these sources of funding contributes to transportation services provided to

elder clients. With the expansion of services to include the unpaid family caregivers
the number of clients will increase significantly.

11



Office of the Governor
RESOLUTION NO. SFP 2016-31

AUTHORIZING FY-18 APPLICATION TO NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION SECTION 5310 ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS

AND INDIVDUALS WITH DISABILITIES
& THE COMMITING 20% MATCHING FUNDS

At a duly called meeting of the Tribal Council of the Pueblo of San Felipe (“Pueblo™), the
following resolution was passed:

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Pueblo of San Felipe is a federally recognized Tribe existing and acting pursuant
to its inherent and retained sovereignty; and

the Tribal Council is empowered to act in all members that concerns the health,
safety, and wellbeing of the Pueblo and its tribal members; and

the Pueblo of San Felipe elderly population is rapidly growing and the demand for
services are increasing substantially; and

the Pueblo recognizes that there is a critical need for meeting and continuation of
the transportation needs of the community’s elder population; and

the Pueblo’s Tribal Council commits to contribute no less that 20% of the total net

_ cost of the total request of transportation service vehicles and equipment; and

WHEREAS,

the Pueblo has submitted the required Letter of Intent to apply for funding support
under the New Mexico Department of Transportation Section 5310 — Enhanced
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pueblo of San Felipe Tribal Council
respectfully requests funding support under the New Mexico Department of Transportation
Section 5310 for FY 2018, and hereby commits tribal funds in the amount of $21,375.20 to fulfill

~ the 80/20 matching requirement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

(505) 867-3381/3382 « P.O.Box 4339, San Felipe Pueblo, NM 87001 « FAX: (505) 867-3383



1. The Pueblo of San Felipe declares that the eligibility requirements of the New Mexico
Department of Transportation Section 5310 — Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and
Individuals with Disabilities are met.

2, The Pueblo of San Felipe assures that compliance requirements and the rules and
regulations of the New Mexico Department of Transportation Sections 5310 —
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities shall be met.

CERTIFICATION
We, the undersigned, respectfully as Governor and Lt. Govemnor, certify that the foregoing

resolution was adopted at a dully called meeting of the Pueblo of San Felipe Tribal Council on this
17" day of August, 2016 with a quorum being present.

MU TS N

Governor, Michael T. Sandoval

ATTEST:

PhtisstGhoveys Wi 4G o4

Tribal Council Member Tribal Council Member




JUSTIFICATION

MISSION STATEMENT:

The Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services Program commits to provide services to the elder clients of the
community where they will be allowed to maintain an independent, healthy, productive and quality lifestyle
through love, compassion, and respect. Services will be tailored to provide elders of the Pueblo with a
comprehensive, multifaceted, and effective Elderly Services Program which meets the needs and
expectations of all elders including those with greatest social and economic needs in a manner that is
reflective of the culture and traditions of the Pueblo of San Felipe, so that elders can remain in their home
and continue to make valuable contributions to the Pueblo.

ELDERLY PROGRAM SERVICES:

The Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services Program has the responsibility of providing a program to meet
the needs of community elders and adults with disabilities. The program strives to provide a coordinated
system of services in the areas of nutrition, social supportive services, and caregiver support services. Some
of the services provided include: case management, information and assistance, outreach,
assisted/transportation, advocacy and representation, home visiting, telephoning, recreational/cultural
affairs services, interpretation/translating, education and training on various topics related to aging. Under
the program’s nutritional services division clients are provided with congregate meals, as well as home-
delivered meals for clients who are frail and/or home bound. In addition to social supportive and nutrition
services, the program provides health promotion and disease prevention initiatives which include: health
screenings, home safety/accident prevention, nutrition education including diabetes health education, and
physical fitness/exercise. It must be noted that the Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services Program provides
services to non-tribal members who either have familial relationships with tribal members or those who
reside in surrounding Pueblo communities. To ensure that services are not duplicated for non-tribal clients,
the program requests an official letter from the respective Tribal program stating that the individual is not
receiving services from their program.

NEED FOR ELDERY SERVICES:

The Role of Elders in the Tribal Community: The Pueblo of San Felipe conducted two community needs
assessments, one through the SAMHSA-funded Circles of Care grant in 2010 and one through the Maternal
Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting grant in 2011. The needs assessments engaged various
stakeholders and included two major components; an assessment of community needs and an analysis of
the capacity of systems to meet these needs. Both needs assessments noted that elders are highly respected
and important to the community as they are a population that is often sought for advice. Linked to this
theme is language, the foremost asset that links San Felipe tribal members to their culture and traditional
livelihood. While the majority of the community speaks Keres (87%), the needs assessments found that
elder tribal members have a deep fear of losing the Keres language. They believe that the Keres language
will begin to dissipate with younger generations transitioning to solely speaking the English language
Elders are the primary resource for younger generations to retain the language for the future, hence
strengthening the importance of elders in the community.



Geographic Location & Impact on Elders: The Pueblo of San Felipe is a tribal community located in
Sandoval County, NM, between Albuquerque, 30 miles to the south, and Santa Fe, 33 miles to the north.
Although situated between two urban centers, the Pueblo is rural and isolated. San Felipe has been located
along the banks of the Rio Grande for over seven hundred years, and the community was well established
at the time Spanish explorers arrived in the 16th century. The Pueblo was federally recognized by the United
States under the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, The Pueblo has many unpaved roads and surfaces
which is based on the culture and traditions that have been practiced since time immemorial, and will not
be paved because of these reasons and purposes. While precautions are taken to ensure safety and vehicle
efficiency these surfaces contribute to the rapid deterioration of our vehicles. An increased emphasis on
maintaining routine maintenance is in place. However, since our current vehicles have reached their
maturity, it is increasingly more difficult to maintain them.

Pueblo elders believe in communal living and some elders still reside in multi-family homes as this is a
traditional practice that has existed since time immemorial. Unfortunately this is no longer the norm for
many of our elders. This practice was important because it assured that elders and their needs were taken
care of as they age and ensured that elders were not isolated. Today, the Pueblo has successfuily developed
homes for families in a sub-division area away from the Main Village. Transportation is required to travel
between the sub-division and the Main Village. Inadvertently this has created a hardship on the elders who
were used to having many generations reside with them or nearby. They are now finding themselves alone
in their homes to care for themselves often resulting in loneliness and isolation. Every effort is made to
ensure caregiver services are provided on the Pueblo. However, currently there is no funding from the state
to enhance caregiver services/programs and the ability to meet “caregiver need” on the pueblo is limited.

Loneliness and isolation contribute to health disparities amongst the elders which is often seen in a rapid
deterioration of their health and well-being since many feel they are no longer needed or making valuable
contributions to their families and community. Their role as elders and their contributions so valued by the
Pueblo is being undermined by their ongoing physical isolation and is a growing concern for the Pueblo.
Reconnecting the elders back to the Pueblo Community and their families and the provision of necessary
wrap around services by ensuring transit access via a capital investment through the purchase of two Pueblo
vehicles for the elderly is an essential first-step to increase and sustain their health and well-being.

Socioeconomic Profile of the Pueblo of San Felipe:

The Pueblo is a sovereign nation and is ruled by traditional laws. The Pueblo governs itself within its
territory. It operates its own Tribal Court for members of the Pueblo. The Governor, Lieutenant Governor,
War Chief and other tribal leadership officials are appointed for a one-year term by the religious leaders of
the Pueblo. The Tribal Council is the governing body for the Pueblo. Tribal administration consists of two
tribal administrators and various department heads. Currently, departments consist of: Finance, Health and
Wellness, Maintenance, Information Technology, Natural Resources, Public Improvement Authority,
Human Resources, Child Care, Education, Elderly Services, Enrollment, Family Services, Head Start, WIC
and Tribat Court.

Although strong in cultural grounding, San Felipe, like many tribes in NM, struggles with modern
influences and rural isolation, According to the most recent estimates, there are 4,261 residents of the



Pueblo of San Felipe (US Census ACS, 2014). Most residents (80.3%) self-identify as American Indian.
According to the 2010 Census there was an 87.8% increase in the number of persons on the Pueblo 65 and
older compared to 2000. Poverty is an extensive problem in San Felipe. The U.S. Census Bureau estimated
that 23% of the population of San Felipe Pueblo CDP lives below the poverty level. This rate is a slightly
higher than the state of New Mexico and varies among age groups. Estimated per capita income in 2013
was $10,533. Due to significant number of elders living in poverty, there will be an increasing demand for
services designed for elders with low incomes. As elders with limited incomes become frail, the demand
for many types of subsidized services increases.

Transportation: The Pueblo of San Felipe Transit Study was conducted from December 2014 to May
2015, using a multi-pronged approach that considered current resources, partnership opportunities and
community goals. The project’s planning team worked to document the Pueblo’s current transit resources
and deficiencies, and develop a vision for Pueblo-based transit services based on best practices,
community needs, development goals and partnership opportunities. Findings included: Transit services
available to Pueblo residents are limited as there is no publicly owned, open access transit service
available on San Felipe Pueblo. Transit services are available specifically to serve the elderly and their
spouses, those who are physically and/or medically disabled if they reside with an eligible elder. Services
include: limited van service for residents of the Elderly Center, and medical appointment van service
through the Indian Health Service’s Community Health Representative Program. The Study concluded
that in light of the Pueblo's expansive land base, housing developments and tribal facilities, there is an
increasing need for better transit availability.

The 2014 Transit Study examined the Elderly Center Van Service specifically and found the following:
The Elderly Center provides nutrition, cultural and social services to Pueblo community elders. The
program serves 205 seniors. The program offers a daily meal, and provides transportation to elders who
wish to attend — typically about 20-25 seniors. The Center also delivers meals to elders who are home-
bound. The Center also offers programs for seniors at the Center and field trips off-reservation, along with
a twice-monthly shopping and errand expedition to Bernalillo. If the CHR ride service is not available, the
Elderly Center will provide transportation to medical or other appointments, or work with family members
to help the senior travel to the appointment. The Elderly Center has in operation one 15-passenger bus, and
one 14 passenger bus with wheelchair access. These vehicles are tribally owned. There is a need for transit
options for seniors to incidental appointments and errands, particularly to the Human Services Department
in Bernalillo. Since that Study was conducted, the two vehicles have reached maturity and the need for safe
and reliable vehicles to transport tribal elderly and those with disabilities is urgent.

PROGRAM CHANGES OR EXPANSION:

Currently, there is a total population of 852 elders eligible for services who reside on the reservation but
this population is growing rapidly as baby-boomers reach retirement age. Furthermore, the percentage of
this population anticipated to seek services from the program will increase because recent housing
construction is allowing younger members of overcrowded homes to move into modern housing, with the
result that more elders are isolated and accordingly prime candidates for services. The Pueblo is looking at
a 23.4% increase of its elder population over the next four years. The roles of the elderly are also changing.
We have a number of cases where grandparents are raising grandchildren, and become the primary



providers for their households. These factors result in the following: an increased demand in meals,
transportation, translation/interpretation, case management, and caregiver service. This role results in
securing economic assistance through public benefits/assistance which also require transportation services
outside of the tribal service area. Many elders do not have reliable means of transportation and solely depend
on transportation services provided through the Elderly Services Program.

Program services are expanding as the roles for the Elderly change. Over the last few years we have seen
a great expansion universally in the range and variety of, applicable benefits, services and technologies
made available to the elder population. The choices available to elders and their families/caregivers are
complicated and changing benefits in public programs contribute to a confusing situation for elders and
their families, Changes in federal programs like Medicare, Social Security, and Medicaid require not only
require translation into Keres, but it is often assumed that the internet which is limited on the Pueblo, is the
means by which Elders can access these benefits. The same is true for additional benefits when caring for
grandchildren. Given that high-tech options are not readily available for San Felipe Elders, transportation
to regional offices to enroll and handle any issues that arises with these federal programs and others is
required. Expansion of services requires a commensurate expansion in the infrastructure to support the new
service mix and transportation is an essential component of the infrastructure.

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR 2018:

Goals:
A, To provide quality appropriate, consistent and responsive services to elders
according to Pueblo policies and procedures.
Objectives:
1. Maintain current, accurate and approved Program Policies and Procedures.
2. Increase staff knowledge of tribal and program requirements and good customer
service skills.
3. Maintain program quality and consistency by identifying core department/program
services and identifying/developing adequate support for those services.

B. To improve the lives of Pueblo Elders by addressing barriers to self-sufficiency.

Objectives:
1. Increase self-sufficiency by improving assisted transportation including medical/dental
transports.

2. Increase In home and Caregiver Services to support Elders remaining in their homes

C. To provide social supports to improve the health and safety of tribal elders
Objectives:
1. Increase the ability of Elders to reconnect back by to their community through quality
elderly services.
2. Increase Transportation Access for the Elderly to cultural and community events.
Increase access for the Elderly to state of the art health and behavioral health services.
4. Increase reliable and safe transportation options for the Pueblo’s elderly.
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FUNDING LEVEL JUSTIFICATION:

We are growing, and the demand for services from our San Felipe Pueblo Elder Services Program
is exceeding our current capacity to provide services. The request for funding consists of amounts
to purchase two new 16 passenger transit vehicles.

Elder participation in the program has grown significantly in the past 6 years, and the population
seeking services is expanding due to two primary factors:

1. Growth in the 55+ aged population
2. Construction of single family homes results in more seniors living alone and therefore
in need of nutritional, recreational, social, and other services.

The requested federal funds in the amount of $85,500.80 will enable the Pueblo to acquire two
wheelchair accessible vehicles to support expansion of congregate meals and other Center-based
services to approximately 35 additional elders,
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I1. Organizational Structure

The Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services Program is part of the Pueblo of San Felipe Tribal
Organization, The Organization is led by the Tribal Administration which consists of the
Governor, Lt. Governor, War Chief, Lt. War Chief, Fiscale and Lt. Fiscale. The Tribal
Administration is appointed on an annual basis through traditional appointment. The Tribal
Administration is charged with the responsibility to administer the daily operations of the
Pueblo’s tribal government. Individuals who serve in the any of the aforementioned capacities
become lifelong members of the Tribal Council. The Council meets periodically throughout the
year to set direction and make decisions in the best interest of the Pueblo.

The Tribal Administration has an administrative staff under his direction which includes: Tribal
Administrators, Human Resources, and Finance all who contribute to successful implementations
of grants and confracts for the Pueblo. Currently, the organization has a total of fifteen (15) tribal
programs which collaborate and coordinate services for the community

The Tribal Administrators provide oversight of the day to day operations of the programs under
the Tribal Organization. Policies and Procedures which have been approved and adopted by the
Tribal Council, are the guiding document for all tribal programs and are designed to bring
effective and efficient personnel management.

The Finance Department is responsible for all financial and budgetary matters to ensure
accountability and transparency. A financial protocol was established to ensure accuracy and a
centralized system for processing all financial documents. Status reports are prepared and
provided on a monthly basis to ensure that programs are in compliance with all expenditure
requirements.

The Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services program is staffed by a total of seven (7) staff.
Positions include: the Program Director, an Office Manager, a Family Caregiver Specialist, an
Activities Planner/Van Driver, a Maintenance/Van Driver, a Cook, and a cook’s aide. Steps are
being taken to fill another cook’s aide position, and with the mandate of the SAMs database
implementation an Outreach Worker/Data Entry Clerk position will be advertised. These two
positions will be funded by the Pueblo. The Program Director is responsible for the combined
performance of all the staff within the program. While each staff member has an outlined job
description for their respective positions, they are also responsible for ensuring that day to day
direct services including transportation are carried out. Each month staff are required to submit a
report which highlights the units of service provided to elder clients.

ITI. Mission Statement

The Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services Program commits to provide services to the elder
clients of the community where they will be allowed to maintain an independent, healthy,
productive and quality lifestyle through love, compassion, and respect. Services will be tailored
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to provide elders of the Pueblo with a comprehensive, multifaceted, and effective Elderly
Services Program which meets the needs and expectations of all elders including those with
greatest social and economic needs in a manner that is reflective of the culture and traditions of
the Pueblo of San Felipe, so that elders can remain in their home and continue to make valuable
contributions to the Pueblo.

I'V. Brief Description of Transit Program

A. Service Area
The Pueblo of San Felipe is a federally recognized Tribe, and is one of the nineteen (19) Pueblos
of New Mexico. The Pueblo is geographically located in the middle Rio Grande Valley in a
predominantly rural area of the state. The Pueblo is approximately sixty-thousand (60,000) plus
acres, majority of the lands are primarily used for agricultural purposes such as farming and

grazing.

The Pueblo is growing its residential land base, lands are being developed to address the need for
housing for community members. The historic portion of the main village is nestled in between
the black mesa and the west bank of the Rio Grande river, this is the location where the ancestors
of the Pueblo originally settled, and is where all of the traditional/cultural activities and events
take place. Many of the elders still reside within this area and it is also where the Senior Center is
located. There is only one bridge in and out of the historic Pueblo area and the roads are unpaved
because of traditional purposes. The primary language spoken is Keres, and many of the younger
generation elders can understand the English dialect to some degree; however many of the older
generation elders and those who have had their education cut short due to familial
responsibilities require much translation and interpretation.

Like many Native American reservations within the state, The Pueblo of San Felipe has a high
poverty rate. While the casino, travel center, and the Pueblo government/organization employs
tribal members many still remain under the poverty level because they do not possess the
education to attain higher paying positions. While the Pueblo has small revenue operations such
as the casino a percentage of the revenues are contributed to the state coffers, so the Pueblo still
relies on the funding provided from the state for service provisions for older adults and capital
purchases/projects.

The Pueblo has a Indian Health Services (IHS) health clinic which is open Monday through
Friday, the health clinic not only services San Felipe community members but other Native
Americans who reside in surrounding communities such as Kewa Pueblo. While the health clinic
is available to the elders of the community it is difficult for them to access the care they need
because of long waits and quick fillings of same day appointments; this then contributes to
deteriorating health and self-neglect. Unfortunately, the clinic does not receive enough funding
to expand services; it receives funding as a health clinic while it provides services at the level of
a health center. Elders also have access to dental health care through the dental services program;
however because of limited funding elders don’t always get the necessary services they are in
need of. Because of the lack of adequate health resources available within the reservation
boundaries, elders must travel outside of the Pueblo to seek proper medical attention and since



many older adult don’t have reliable means of transportation they depend on transportation
services from the Elderly Services program.
The community also has access to behavioral health and mental health services through the
Systems of Care programs and the Behavioral Health Department. The programs offer one to one
mental health services, support groups, behavioral health counseling, and substance abuse
prevention counseling/support, family support programs and parenting sessions all of which
contribute to supporting and assisting the community elders, The Pueblo has a housing authority
office in which the elders can go and seek assistance and services for their housing needs;
however because of limited funding elders are often charged for the services they receive from
the program. While the charges are minimal many elders cannot afford it since many of them are
on limited incomes.
For many elders the Elder Services Program is the only source of reliable transportation they
have to get to the appointments and the services they receive within the community, as well as
the appointments and services they receive outside of the reservation. They are also provided
monthly shopping trips to either Bernalillo or Albuquerque, for many this is the only opportunity
they have to pay utility bills they may have. They are also provided transportation to recreational
outings and events all of which contribute to the quality of life of the elders and removes them
from home situations which may be stressful and negatively impacts elders’ health and
wellbeing.

B. Route Design
The route design is with the boundaries of the Pueblo; there is an established route that is
followed daily for those elders who require “pick-up” services for daily access to services either
at the Senior Center or local programs within the Pueblo. The areas within the main village areas
are unpaved roads and may take up to an hour and a half to complete the route. Because of the
unpaved roads, drivers have to drive slower on the unpaved surfaces to ensure comfort ability of
elder passengers, and also to prevent rapid deterioration of the vehicles utilized on the route.
Service has also expanded into a new sub-division area where there are approximately 500+
homes in the area. Many of the elders who used to reside with multi generations of family are
finding themselves being care for within the new sub-division area since many of their primary
care givers now reside within the newly developed area.

C. Schedule (days and hours of operation)
The hours of operation of the Elderly Services Program are the hours of operation for
transportation services. These hours include:

¢ Monday through Thursday 8am to 4:30pm
e Fridays from 6am to 2:30pm

There are exceptions however, which are made depending on the need and reasonable and
justifiable accommodations are made to extend service hours beyond the stated times or earlier
than the stated time to ensure elder clients’ needs are addressed. These hours may also be
extended on the weekend if requests are made well in advance.

D. Fare Structure (amounts, how set, and by whom)
The program does not charge a fare for transportation services provided to elder clients.



E. Advertising/Marketing
Advertising and marketing are done internally within the program as well as through
organizational programs who understand the process of accessing transportation services. The
referral process often leads to increased service delivery as the elderly clients referred to the
program require more than just transportation services.
To ensure that the transportation services are advertised locally, the program staff will work
towards establishing decals which identify transportation vehicles as service units and where
they can obtain transportation services.

V. Administrative Employees

A. Title and Job Descriptions
The Pueblo of San Felipe is currently staffed with a total of seven (7) staff including the Program
Director. Two (2) additional positions are in the process of being filled which will bring the total
number of staff to nine (9). The Program Director is responsible for daily programmatic
oversight and the combined performance of the Elderly Services Program staff, Below is a
summary of all the positions of the program and their respective responsibilities.
Staff:
Program Director — The incumbent is responsible for the coordination, oversight, and
supervision of all programs, services, and activities at the Pueblo of San Felipe Elderly Services
Program. Incumbent responsibilities include planning, directing, coordinating and providing
oversight of the daily operations of the program. Incumbent will carry out a range of
administrative tasks which include preparing comprehensive reports, plans, scope of works,
budgets, relative correspondence/memorandums, and elderly data/statistics and
submitting/presenting to state and federal agencies, including the Tribal Administration and
Council. Engages in public speaking, forums, and aging related panel activities as necessary.
Develops and implements policies and procedures in compliance with all regulations associated
with the Older Americans Act, Aging and Long Term Services Department, and the PSA 6
Indian Area agency on aging. Incumbent’s contacts will include but are not limited to Tribal
Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal, State, and County agency
representatives, elders of the community, and the general public.
Office Manager — The incumbent is responsible for organizing and coordinating office
operations and procedures in order to ensure Elderly Services Program effectiveness and
efficiency this includes maintaining office services, equipment, and office records. Incumbent
will carry out a range of administrative and IT related tasks. This position is of high visibility,
and requires exemplary communication and interpersonal skills. Incumbent’s contacts will
include but are not limited to Tribal Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff,
Federal, State, and County agency representatives, elders of the community, and the general
public.
Family Caregiver Specialist — The incumbent will provide one-on-one assistance to the elders
and caregivers living in the Pueblo of San Felipe by assessing, planning, coordinating, and
evaluating support services available to elders. Incumbent will work to identify and determine the
need for Family Caregiver Support Services and will provide referrals as appropriate to a variety
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of assistance programs available either through the Pueblo of San Felipe Tribal Organization, or
external resource agencies. The incumbent will provide assistance to caregivers in gaining access
to services, coordinating respite services, and facilitating care management for eligible elders, and
facilitating/identifying resources for caregiver training through outreach, counseling, and case
management. The position requires a high level of visibility within the community which requires
excellent communication and interpersonal skills. Incumbent’s contacts will include but are not
limited to Tribal Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal, State, and County
agency representatives, elders of the community, and the general public.
Activities Planner/Van — The incumbent will be responsible for planning, organizing,
implementing, and supervising recreation programs in areas such as social-recreation activities,
arts and crafts, educational programs, and trips/excursions for elders of San Felipe Puebio.
Services will focus on the enhancement and improvement of daily lifestyles of the elder
population. Incumbent will be required to work with a variety of service programs and staff in the
planning and scheduling of such recreation programs. The position requires a high level of’
visibility within the community which requires excellent communication and interpersonal skills
which are vital in maintaining a rapport with elders, the general public, and agencies providing
services. The position will also require working with other senior programs and serve as an
informational contact for the general public, Incumbent will provide transportation services to all
elder clients on a daily basis. Incumbent’s contacts will include but are not limited to Tribal
Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal, State, and County agency
representatives, elders of the community, and the general public.
Cook — Under the general supervision of the Elder Services Program Director, the cook is
responsible for the oversight and supervision of the kitchen. Incumbent is responsible for planning,
organizing, and guiding the activities of the kitchen staff to ensure that meal services provided to
elder clients are carried out in an efficient and effective manner while meeting the required
guidelines of both state and federal guidelines. The cook is responsible for preparing, cooking, and
serving the elder clients nutritious, good tasting and appealing meals in accordance with the agency
approved menus. It is the cook’s responsibility to provide oversight of the preparation of these
meals through methods that maintain high nutrient levels and that are sanitary. Incumbent will
carry out a range of meal preparation functions including but not limited to, cooking, baking, and
assembly of food. The cook will coordinate and schedule with the cook aides to ensure the timely
delivery of meals to the home bound clients and provide meal services to the participants who
attend the center for congregate meals. Incumbent’s contacts will include but are not limited to
- Tribal Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal, State, and County agency
representatives, elders of the community, and the general public.
Cooks Aide (2 positions) — Under the general supervision of the Elder Services Program Director
and with guidance from the cook, the incumbent assists in serving the elder clients nutritious, good
tasting and appealing meals in accordance with USDA Nutritional Guidelines and the ALTSD
Dietitian approved menu. It is the incumbent’s responsibility to assist in the preparation of these
meals through methods that maintain high nutrient levels and that are sanitary, Incumbent will
carry out a range of meal preparation functions including cooking, baking, and assembly of food.
The incumbent also assists in the timely delivery of meals to the home bound clients and to the
participants who attend the center for congregate meal service. Incumbent’s contacts will include
6



but are not limited to Tribal Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal, State,
and County agency representatives, elders of the community, and the general public.

Outreach Worker/Data Entry Clerk — Under the general supervision of the Elderly Services
Program Director the outreach worker/data entry clerk will conduct outreach for the purpose of
contacting elderly persons within the community, identify elders in need of services and assist
them in obtaining community services, and other resources they are in need of. He/she will be
responsible for conducting intake and gathering all pertinent information of elder clients to
maximize resources for their benefit. The incumbent will also be responsible for collecting and
entering all client data and information of service provision in the SAMs data base. This position
is of high visibility, and requires exemplary communication and interpersonal skills. Incumbent’s
contacts will include but are not limited to Tribal Council, Tribal Administration, Tribal Programs
staff, Federal, State, and County agency representatives, elders of the community, and the general
public.
B. Appearance and Conduct

The Pueblo of San Felipe’s Persormel Policies have both a Dress Code and an Employee Conduct Code.
Departments like Health and Wellness have their own dress codes that reflect the tasks to be performed.
The General dress code is stated below:
Dress Code: Employees shall dress appropriately for the work environment.
Employee Conduct: Tribal employees are expected to comply with all standards of conduct of the
Pueblo of San Felipe along with internal program standards with respect to their performance of their
duties and responsibilities. Standards of conduct shall include but not be limited to policies outlined in
the following areas to which employees are held:

s Employees Holding Political Office Within or Outside of San Felipe Pueblo

¢ Unlawful Acts

¢ Sexual Harassment

e Receipts of Gifts and Gratuities

¢ Employee Indebtedness

C. Training Plan

The Pueblo of San Felipe’s policy regarding training is comprised of a Performance Appraisal Policy and
an Educational Leave Policy. Annual trainings are encouraged and are included in the performance
TeView process.
Policy: It is the Policy of San Felipe and responsibilities of all supervisors to conduction probationary
and annual performance appraisals for all tribal employees.
Educational Leave: Educational leave may be granted after one year of employment to regular full or
part-time employee in order to attain a degree from an accredited institution of higher learning or
specialized training. Educational leave shall not interfere with the employee’s work schedule. Educational
leave shall not exceed five hours per week.

6. Qualified Driers and Dispatchers

A. Hiring Procedure
1. Every effort will be made to comply with tribal preference in the hiring process. Before considering
other applicants, the selecting official shall inform the Human Resources Director of the reasons that
applicants with preference for employment were not selected.



2. The selection committee shall select, for the initial interview, applicants who possess the qualifications
to perform the duties of the position. The Selection Committee shall select the most qualified applicant
for the specified position. The Tribal Administration will work with the sentor management team in
selecting Tribal Administrators and Department Director positions.
C. Selection Process
1. Job-Related Methods and Criteria. All selection methods and criteria shall be job- related and
approved by the Human Resources Director. A selection method is any assessment or technique,
including, but not limited to, performance tests; training programs; physical, education and work
experience requirements; formal interviews; and application forms. All methods and criteria will be
applied consistently among all job candidates.
2. Physical Qualifications. A person shall possess the physical qualifications necessary to perform the
essential duties of the position. Essential duties will be stated in the Job Description.
3. Reference Checks. Reference checks are conducted to verify information related to an applicant's
qualifications. Job-related inquires shall be made of current and former employers and other persons who
can supply relevant information, False information provided by an applicant shall be grounds for
rejection or termination. The Human Resources Department shall be responsible for all reference checks.

B. Background Check
Background Checks. All positions may be subject to a full background investigation. The Human
Resources Director shall develop a process to conduct investigations. Those positions handling money,
children, elders or inventories or security of buildings shall be subject to a full criminal, sex offender
investigations, financial investigations or other. Job-related background and character checks, which may
include fingerprinting of applicants, shall initiate immediately upon appointment of a person to a sensitive
position. If the background check cannot be completed until after placement, the results shall be used to
determine the employee's suitability for continued employment with selected staff working under careful
supervision by their immediate supervisor. The Human Resources Department shall be responsible for all
background checks.

C. Driver Record
This is covered under background checks for positions that Driving is the primary function.

D. Valid Driver’s License
As part of the selection process, all applicants must provide a valid driver’s license at the time of hire.

E. Training Plain
The Pueblo of San Felipe’s policy regarding training is comprised of a Performance Appraisal Policy and
an Educational Leave Policy. Annual trainings are encouraged and are included in the performance
review process.
Policy: It is the Policy of San Felipe and responsibilities of all supervisors to conduction probationary
and annual performance appraisals for all tribal employees.
Educational Leave: Educational leave may be granted after one year of employment to regular full or
part-time employee in order to attain a degree from an accredited institution of higher learning or
specialized training. Educational leave shall not interfere with the employee’s work schedule. Educational
leave shall not exceed five hours per week.
Drivers’ Training: To evaluate and assist drivers in maintaining and acceptable level of performance,
Pueblo of San Felipe shall periodically arrange for attendance at a Defensive Driving Course.
Pueblo of San Felipe shall make assignments for the course as follows:
1. Mandatory attendance for employees who have been involved in a "preventable accident."

2. Mandatory attendance for employees whose immediate supervisors determine that they have
questionable driving capabilities or habits.



3. Voluntary attendance for employees who have not attended a Defensive Driving

Course in the past three (3) years.
F. Job Description

Pueblo of San Felipe
Position Description

Position Title: Maintenance/Driver

Pay Grade:

Department: Elderly Services Program

FLSA: Non-Exempt J

Job Summary:

The incumbent will provide on-site program
support for the Elderly Services Program which
include but are not limited to
janitorial/maintenance. Incumbent is responsible
for providing a clean and safe environment for all
elderly participants. Incumbent will also be
responsible for providing assistance to the
Activities Planner to transport elders to and from
the Senior Center on a daily basis and on scheduled
field trips/outings. The position requires a high
level of visibility within the community which
requires excellent communication and
interpersonal skills which are vital in maintaining a
rapport with elders, the general public, and
agencies providing services. The position will also
require working with other senior programs and
serve as an informational contact for the general
public. Incumbent’s contacts will include but are
not limited to Tribal Council, Tribal
Administration, Tribal Programs staff, Federal,

State, and County agency representatives, elders of

the community, and the general public.

Supervision and Guidelines: Work is performed
under the general supervision of the Program
Director. Work performance is evaluated through
periodic checks of adequacy and timeliness of
services provided and outcomes achieved. The
Pueblo of San Felipe Organizational Policies and
Procedures in conjunction with the programs
standard operating procedures will serve as
guidance documents in day to day operations and
management of the incumbent.

Essential Duties:

Essential duties and responsibilities include the following but not limited to:

1. Provide general janitorial/maintenance activities which include but are not limited to: general
building repairs, sweeping, mopping, vacuuming, dusting, etc. Service and clean all aspects of the
program building to ensure safe and sanitary conditions.




2. Ma1nta1n all janitorial equipirient and ensure that it i§ clean did in operable conditior; conduct

routine inventory to ensure that janitorial closet is clean, organized, and well stocked '

Ensure proper storage, dilution, and labeling of all cleaning chemicals.

4. Lock and unlock the program building; ensure security of the burldmg when facilities are not in use”
this includes a complete walk through and checklng for: lights, unlocked doors and<'w1ndows and
ensuring that the building is completely empty ; R

had

5. Prepare the facility for events and act1v1t1es th1s 1ncludes set up, arrangement, and removal of chalrs
tables, decorations, equipment, etc. B - : - . _
6. Perform general grounds maintenance including the removal of trash and debris from the s1dewalks, :

salting the sidewalks in inclement weather, and mowing/trimming weeds and other natural debns o
7. Observe the appearance and condltlon of the bu11d1ng, the premises, and equ1pment Report any T
necessary repairs, safety hazards, or cond1t1ons . : . S
8. Maintains ail program vehicles; and ensures that they are routlnely serv1ced for the purpoSe of -
assunng availability in safe, operatmg condmon - ‘
9. . Provide transportatlon to and.fr m_.the Semor Ce nter and forjall off s1te pro gram sponsored act1v1t1e
i outmgs and programs.. : S T E R e e AL LRy
10. Participate in all. emergency dnlls and env1ro‘_ ental safety act1v1t1es e L Lt 3

T S S

e,

11.:Attend and. participate in grantée-sponsored. tralnmgs program pre-serv1ce and in-service tramlngs ok

- .and other continuing; educatlon seareer-and professmnaL development opportun1t1es s,

12 Part1c1pate in:the program's self evaluation process and grantee monitoring visits and comply wrth

.any applicable Program Improvement Plans that are developed ) ‘ o

13. Partlc1pate in general:staff meetlngs and other 1neet1ngs conferences and events planned by the Ly

: granteeandtheprogramdlrector S S S e s

14. Assist the Activities Planner as directed by the Program Drrector in prov1d1ng transportatron and
' physical assistance services to elders for special functions and- act1v1t1es held. off site.

15. Develop and provide a variety of reports to meet program requ1rements and as directed by the .

Program Director., o e %

Additional Responsrblhtles‘ N ‘ EENN - L
This position description in no way states or implies that these are the only duties peiformed by this |
employee. He or she will be required to Jfollow any other mstructmns or to petform any otker duties’|

requested by his or her supervisor. T o S o

Working Conditions:
The work is normally performed in an office setting including general areas utilized by the elderly clients. |
Incumbent will regularly be exposed to janitorial/maintenance equipment and tools, both hazardous and
non-hazardous cleaning chemicals, and outside inclement weather conditions. The work area is adequately
lighted, heated and ventilated. Travel is required to conduct home visits with potential exposure to-animals,
disease, unsanitary conditions, and traffic hazards; and for fransportation to activities/outings for elderly |
clients. The incumbent may be faced with constant interruptions and must meet the demands of caregrvers
elderly clients, and the general public. Work environment is a:drug free work place; - v

10




Qualifications:
* Education: High School diploma or general educat1on degree (GED), and ¢ one year related

experience and/or training; It is preferred that the incumbent have some level of knowledge or
training in janitorial/maintenance operations. Incumbent must be willing to be trained and become
certified in Food Handling Services.

* Experience/Basic Knowledge:

- To perfon:n the duties of this position successfully, the incumbent must be able to perform each
essential duty effectively. The requirements listed are considered essential assets of knowledge,
skills, and abilities necessary for job performance. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with special needs, limitations and/or disabilities to perform the essential

. fLIIlCtIOIlS o
¢ Knowledge of the rules and regulations related to the confidentiality of sensitive client and pro gram

information.

e Ab111ty to read blue prints, and maintain work orders, and service requests.

L. Knowledge and strict adherence to Tribal, State, Federal and Local Policies and Procedures '

- governing all facets of operating a compliant and effective Elderly Services Program.
¢ Some knowledge of safety guidelines regarding the use of cleamng chenucals and handhng
hazardous materjals. _ ' ‘

. Knowledge of commumty and external resources and services- available for the elderly populatlon
e Ability to communicate effectively with employees, elders agency representanves and the general
- public using tact, courtesy, and common sense.

. e Ability to establish and maintain effective workmg relatlonshlps w1th employees, elders, agency |

" representatives, and the general publrc ‘Muist be able to positively respond to stressful situations
_ involving elder client services. ‘ ' : : -

- & Must possess strong 1nterpersonal, __ problem solving,' plannin'g, time r'nanager_n_ent and |
~ organizational skills. ' o T B

& Must have the ability to exercise extreme patience and sen51tlv1ty while workmg w1th the elder

. populatlon and have the ability to resolve conflicts effectlvely . |

' & Ability to understand and execute oral and written instruction. Knowledge of basic grammar,

spelling, punctuation, and required formats Must possess effective written and verbal |
communication skills. ' .

¢ Demonstrated expertise in operating standard janitorial equipment and machinery.

e Ability to work independently in a fast paced environment, manage a high volume of work, set
priorities and meet deadlines.

o Knowledge of Customs and Mores of the Pueblo of San Felipe and willingness to adhere to the
practices with respect.

» Required Licenses/Certifications: MUST HAVE VALID NM DRIVERS LICENSE AND BE
INSURABLE.

» Physical Requirements:

Must have the ability to perform a variety of physical labor including climbing ladders, bendmg,
kneeling, reaching, and standing for long periods of time; ability to lift and carry up to 50lbs (lifting

11




1ncludes boxes equlpment tools, materlals, etc.). Must have manual dextenty to enter and retnev‘
data ﬁomacomputer R S A LU LEE S LI e b :
. PreferenceS° Keres language speaker preferred "'s;? RS
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Employee Acceptance. | agree to perform the dutles of thJs posmon dﬁcnptlon to 1he best of my ablllt‘.leS to serve-the peOple of the San Fellpe Pueblo
Empl.oyce-_ T A S N L v B ok IR i WA TV P S T -

Daté: AR I P ER A
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G. Appearance and Conduct
The Pueblo of San Felipe’s Personnel Policies have both a Dress Code and an Employee Conduct Code.
Departments like Health and Wellness have their own dress codes that reflect the tasks to be performed.
The General dress code is stated below:
Dress Code: Employees shall dress appropriately for the work environment.
Employee Conduct: Tribal employees are expected to comply with all standards of conduct of the
Pueblo of San Felipe along with internal program standards with respect to their performance of their
duties and responsibilities. Standards of conduct shall include but not be limited to policies outlined in
the following areas to which employees are held:

¢ Employees Holding Political Office Within or Outside of San Felipe Pueblo

s  Unlawful Acts

¢ Sexual Harassment

e Receipts of Gifts and Gratuities

e Employee Indebtedness

The following is specific to any San Felipe Pueblo Driver of a Tribal Vehicle:

Prohibition on Texting While Driving,
Executive Order No. 13513, Prohibition on Texting While Driving, Effective December 01, 2009 and
issued from the Office of the Deputy Secretary of Interior.

Recently deadly crashes involving drivers distracted by text messaging while driving highlight a
growing danger. Text messaging causes drivers to take their eyes off the road and at least one hand off
the steering wheel, endangering both themselves and others. President Obama recently issued Executive
Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving." Based on this
important order Pueblo of San Felipe employees are prohibited from text messaging while doing any of
the following:

o Driving San Felipe Pueblo-owned , San Felipe Pueblo-leased , or San Felipe Pueblo-
rented vehicles (GOVs);

e Driving privately-owned vehicles (POV) while on official San Felipe Pueblo business;
and

¢ Using electronic equipment supplied by San Felipe Pueblo including, but not limited to,
cell phones, Blackberries, or other electronic devices while driving.

A San Felipe Pueblo-wide prohibition on the use of text messaging while driving on official business
or while using San Felipe Pueblo-supplied equipment will help save lives, reduce injuries, and set an
example for state and local governments , private employers, and individual drivers.

Texting or text messaging means reading from or entering data into any handheld or other electronic
device, including SMS texting, e-mailing, instant messaging, obtaining navigational information or
engaging in any other form of electronic data retrieval or electronic data communication.
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7. Vehicle Fleet
A. Number of vehicles with NMDOT lien

None

B. Number of vehicles with no NMDOT lien

Six

C. Maintenance Schedules
The Pueblo recognizes vehicle and component (e.g., handicapped access equipment) manufacturers’
manuals are an important part of the vehicle maintenance plan as they define specific maintenance
intervals and provide critical information when the maintenance work is actually to be performed.

Preventive maintenance (PM) inspections and scheduled services follow the recommended intervals by
the manufacturer. If preventive maintenance services are not being done according to the guidelines of the
manufacturer, the Pueblo recognizes that omission may jeopardize any claim to a warranty. Services
eligible for warranty payment must be made by the appropriate personnel and filed with the manufacturer,
Documentation of such services should remain in the vehicle file.

DOCUMENTATION: Preventive maintenance (PM) inspections and Scheduled services should be
performed, and documented according to a proper schedule. All documentation including maintenance
forms, logs, receipts, inspections, and trip logs should be kept through the life of the vehicle plus 3 years,
Whenever a mechanic or tow truck is dispatched to a vehicle in service, documentation should be
submitted and placed in the vehicle file. San Felipe Pueblo Department Directors are responsible for
maintaining the vehicle documentation and forwarding it to Pueblo Administration.

D. Inspection Procedures

Vehicle Inspection Procedure: This procedure is required upon use of a San Felipe Vehicle. Upon

inspection if there is need of repair, a Vehicle Repair Request form is filled out and submitted to

Administration.

1. Approach vehicle; look for leaks of coolant, fuel or lubricants under the vehicle. Note body condition.

2. Under hood, check battery water level, oil level (and last oil change date), transmission fluid level, belt
and hose condition and adjustment. Fill windshield washer reservoir.

3. Start engine for warm up. Check for abnormal noise and gauges for normal readings. Try steering
wheel for excess play.

4, Depress brake pedal for excessive travel, mushy or hard feel.

5. Check horn and windshield wipers. Turn on all lights including emergency flasher. Check high and low

: beam.

6. Check tire inflation and tread.

7. Check emergency equipment including fire extinguisher, first aid kit, emergency triangles, spare tire,
jack, spare fuses and bulbs.

8. Walk around vehicle checking lights and reflectors.

9. Recheck all gauges, fasten seat belt, turn off lights and check the parking/emergency brake.

10. Make test stop within one block. Check operation of transmission.

E. Vechicle Replacement
The Pueblo of San Felipe assumes a usable life of four years for smaller transport vehicles such as vans,
sedans, and station wagons; seven years for small transport vehicles (buses); and ten years for large
transport vehicles (buses). For SUVs, pick-ups or other non-transport vehicles, the Pueblo assumes a
usable life of 20 years or 100,000 miles.
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8. Accident/Incident Reporting Procedures
A. Insurance forms in vehicle

Evidence of Insurance stating protection for applicable liability claims brought against the Pueblo of San

Felipe, its employees, and for damage to property for which employees may be responsible as

indemnitors. This insurance form indicating coverage should be retained in the glove compartment of all

vehicles owned by the Pueblo of San Felipe. This Insurance form may be used by the vehicle driver to
provide proof of financial protection. Any questions regarding the use of this Insurance Form should be
directed to the San Felipe Administrative Office.

B. Accident/incident Reporting Forms in vehicle

San Felipe Pueblo employees involved in an accident in a Pueblo vehicle must follow the Pueblo’s
accident procedures, which include completion of a vehicle accident report. A copy of this Policy
Statement and applicable accident report forms are located in the glove compartment of each vehicle.

9. Passenger Policy and Procedure

San Felipe Elderly Program vehicles may be used to transport employees or Elderly clients as long as
such use is for official Pueblo business only.

Secatbelt Use Requirement, San Felipe employees are covered under an adopted and enforced on-the-
job seat belt use policies and procedures when operating San Felipe Pueblo owned, rented, or when
using personally owned vehicles in the performance of duties. These measures include, but are not
limited to, conducting education, awareness, and other appropriate activities for their employees
regarding the importance of wearing seat belts and the consequences of not wearing them.
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XI1. Checklist
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THIS APPLICATION. SHOULD ANY
OF THESE ITEMS BE MISSING OR INCOMPLETE, THE APPLICATION MAY BE REJECTED BY
THE NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. THIS CHECKLIST MUST BE
SUBMITTED WITH THE APPLICATION. DO NOT LEAVE ANY ITEMS BLANK.
(MARK AS “N/A” IF NOT APPLICABLE)
SECTION DESCRIPTION CHECK v’
I Applicant Information (signed) L
Il Summary of Budget Request e
III Financial Information "
A. - Capital Budget —
B. - Operating Budget P
C. - Provide the following:
1 - Copy of Articles of Incorporation b
2 - Copy of 501(c)3 Certification e
3 - Copy of most current audit y
4 - If transit-related audit findings occurred, copy of corrective action response
submitted to auditor Vdis
5 - If non-profit organization, copy of procurement procedures that comply with
FTA Circular 4220.1F — First Time Applicants only NMA
IV Program Description v
\Y% Description of Service Area L
- complete demographic information L
- provide Map of Service Area (on 8 X 11 page) L
VI Ridership and Transit System Statistics L
VII Vehicle Inventory (include all vehicles) and Other Fixed Assets £
- complete all vehicle and transit-related inventory lists L
- signed Inventory Certification L+
VIII Civil Rights L
IX Project Coordination
- Municipal - Board — Council: Signed Resolution of Support .
- Copy of your affidavit of public notice of your intent to apply for federal funds
If Applicable:
- Copy of Published Public Hearing Notice
- Affidavit of Publication of Public Hearing Notice
- Minutes of Public Hearing, Copies of Exhibits, and Written Statements
X Program Justification Pt
X1 Operations Profile L~
XII Checklist L—"

Mail one application with original signature and one additional copy (total two copies)
postmarked no later than Friday, August 26, 2016. Applications postmarked after this date
will not be considered. Fax and e-mail copies of your application will not be accepted.

Please be aware that if your application is selected for funding, you will be required to submit signed copies

of the FTA Certifications and Assurances and the FTA Civil Rights Reporting Form.
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ﬂ ASSOCIATES, LLC

AUDITORS - BUSINESS CONSULTANTS - CPAS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Members of the Tribal Council
Governor Michael T. Sandoval
The Pueblo de San Felipe
San Felipe, New Mexico

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major governmental fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Governmental Department (Department) of The Pueblo de San
Felipe, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, each major governmental fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Governmental Department of the Pueblo de San Felipe as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Governmental Department of the Pueblo de San Felipe.
They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Pueblo de San Felipe as of December 31,
2014, the changes in financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The Department has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generaliy accepted in the
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information,
aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing
information.

Other Information

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Pueblo of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 7, 2016, on our
consideration of the Pueblo’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Kibiok Me0ton & Aanearaten, Lie

Kubiak, Melton & Associates, LLC
Albuguerque, New Mexico
July 7, 2016
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2014

Primary
Government
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 12,255,836
Restricted Cash 805,138
Investmenis 14,924,292
Accounts Receivable, Net 1,444,778
Grants Receivable, Net 1,129,758
Due From Other Pueblo Entities 10,000
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 20,369,731
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 21,091,527
Total Assets $ 72,031,060
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3 369,572
Accrued Liabilities 408,308
Due to Other Funds 431,243
Unearned Revenue 11,303,710
Long-Term Liabilties:
Due Within One Year 493,405
Due in More Than One Year 7,482,619
Total Liabilities 20,488,857
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 33,485,234
Restricted 4,150,075
Unrestricted 13,906,894
Total Net Position 51,542 203
Total Liabilities and Net Position 3 72,031,060

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE

GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Works and Facilities
Education
Health and Welfare
Debt Service Interest
Indirect Cost Fund

Total Governmental Activities

GENERAL REVENUES
Interest and Investment Eamings
Tax Revenue
Other Income
Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services  Contributions Total
$4,374381 $1954460 $ 8400 § (2,411,521)
114,012 - - (114,012)
121,440 - - {121,440)
11,735,686 471,655 9,966,537 (1,297,494)
329,760 - - (329,760)
4,802,511 2.967.724 - (1,834,787)
21,477,790 5,393,839 9,974,937 (6,109,014)
433,318
3,932,586
755,200
5,121,104
(987,910)
52,530,113

$61.542203

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Resiricted Cash
Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Grants Receivable, Net
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Pueblo Entities

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Pueblo Entities
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted:
Debt Service
Grants and Contracts
Nenspendable
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

DECEMBER 31, 2014
Grants and Capital Total
General Contracts Debt Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 1,366,585 $ 10,889,251 $ - - $ 12,255,836
- - 805,138 - 805,138
14,924,292 - - - 14,924,292
1,355,846 88,932 - - 1,444,778
- 1,129,758 - - 1,129,758
6,712,871 70,214 - - 6,783,085
$24350594 $ 12,178,155 $ 805,138 - $§ 37,342,887
5 93667 $§ 185471 $ - - 279,138
12,178 - - - 12,178
- - - 1,717,082 1,717,062
2,655,963 8,647,747 - - 11,303,710
2,761,808 8,833,218 - 1,717,062 13,312,088
- - B05,138 - 805,138
- 3,344,937 - - 3,344,937
21,597,786 - - (1.717,062) 19,880,724
21,597,786 3,344,937 805,138 (1,717,082) 24,030,799
$24359594 $ 12,178,155 $ 805,138 - $ 37,342,887

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 24,030,799

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Governmental Funds - Capital Assets, Net 28,123,367

Long-term and certain other liabilities, including bonds
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds
Long-term and other liabilities at year end consist of: -

NMFA Loan:
Current Portion (493,406)
Long-Term Portion (7.482,619)
Net Position, Internal Service Fund 7,364,062
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 51,542,203

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Grants and Capital Total
General Contracts  Debt Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 8400 $ 9988537 $ - % - § 9,974,937
Matching Contributions - 471,655 - - 471,655
Tax 3,932,586 - - - 3,932,586
Investment Income 428,434 - 4,884 - 433,318
Third-Party Billing 13,834 1,840,626 - - 1,954,460
Royalties 271,734 - - - 271,734
Other 399,462 - 61,000 - 460,462
Total Revenues 5,054,450 12,378,818 65,884 - 17,499,152
Expenditures
Current
General Government 4,120,979 - - - 4,120,979
Public Works and Facilities - - - - -
Education - 25524 - - 25,524
Health and Welfare - 11,075,593 - - 11,075,593
Capital Qutlay 320,829 765,507 - - 1,086,336
Debt Service - Principai - - 463,900 - 463,900
Debt Service - Interest and Fees - - 329,760 - 329,760
Total Expenditures 4,441,808 11,866,624 793,660 - 17,102,092
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
{under} Expenditures 612,642 512,194 (727,776) - 397,080
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 222 265 - 398,431 - 620,696
Transfers Qut (68,504) {222 285) - (329,927) (620,696)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses): 163,761 {222,265) 358,431 (329,927) -
Net Changes in Fund Balances 766,403 289,929 {329,345) (329,927) 387,060
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 20,831,383 3,055,008 1,134,483 {1,387,135) 23,633,739
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 21597786 $ 3,344,937 $ 805138 §$ (1,717,062) § 24,030,799

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
: GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 397,060

Amounts reported for governmental activities as expenditures in the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures;
however, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense,
In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital Qutlay $ 1,086,336
Depreciation Expense (659,523)
426,813

Other income recognized on the full accrual basis 23,004
Internal services funds are used by the Department to charge the costs of
certain activities to the individual funds. The change in fund net position
of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities:

Change in Net Position, Proprietary Fund (1,834,787)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (987,910



THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Internal
Service
Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ -
Due From Other Pueblo Enterprises 10,000
Total Current Assets 10,000
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Net 13,337,892
Total Assets $ 13,347,892
Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 90,434
Accrued Liabilities 396,130
Due to Other Funds 5,497,266
Total Liabilities 5,983,830
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 13,337,892
Unrestricted (5,973,830)
Total Net Position 7,364,062
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 13347892

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET
POSITION ~ PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Internal
Service
Fund
Operating Revenues
Indirect Cost Recovery $ 910,410
Insurance Premiums 2,057,314
Total Operating Revenues 2,967,724
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Fringe Benefits 864,582
Contract Services 772,693
Other Operating Expenses 658,261
Insurance Benefit Pool 2,024 423
Depreciation 482,552
Total Operating Expenses 4,802,511
Change in Fund Net Position (1,834,787)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 8,198,849
Fund Net Position, End of Year $ 7,364,062
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
— PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Internal
Service
Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from Premiums and Indirect Cost Recovery $ 2,967,724
Payments to Suppliers (2,585,692)
Payments to or on Behalf of Employees (864,582}
Net Cash Gained From (Used in) Operating Activities (482,550)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Advances from Other Funds 482,550
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ -
Reconciliation of change in fund net position to net cash
used in operating activities
Change in Fund Net Position $ (1,834,787)
Adjustments to reconcile change in fund net position
to net cash used in operating activities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Due From Other Pueblo Enterprises 100,800
Accounts Receivable 310,224
Prepaid Assets 42,065
Accounts Payable 54,928
Accrued Liabilities 210,127
Due to Other Funds 634,093
Net Cash Gained From (Used in) Operating Activities ~ § (482,550}

See [ndependent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
The Pueblo de San Felipe (the Pueblo) is an indian Tribe recognized by the United States

government. The Pueblo operates under a government headed by a Governor and Tribal
Council. These financial statements only include the operations of the Governmental
Department (the Department) of the Pueblo de San Felipe.

Reporting Entity

The Department was created by the Pueblo to administer the general government and grant
activities of the Pueblo. The services provided by the Department include general government,
public works, education, and health and social welfare services.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the operations and financial position of the
Department of the Pueblo. These financial statements include the Department's general fund,
grant and contracts fund, debt service fund, capital projects fund, and internal service fund. The
Tribal Council and management of the Department has elected not to include the financial
statements of the Pueblo De San Felipe Gaming Enterprises (the Casino), an enterprise fund of
the Pueblo, the Pueblo De San Felipe Gaming Regulatory Commission (the Gaming
Commission), an internal service fund of the Pueblo, Pueblo De San Felipe Travel Center (the
Travel Center), an enterprise fund of the Pueblo, or the Pueblo De San Felipe Housing Authority
(the Housing Authority), a component unit of the Pueblo, in these financial statements. Due to
these exclusions, these financial statements do not purport to be basic or primary government
financial statements.

The Housing Authority is a component unit of the Pueblo and would be included in government-
wide financial statements of the Pueblo. However, the Housing Authority is reported separately
from the Department as a special purpose entity of the Pueblo. Complete financial statements
can be obtained from the Housing Authority's administrative offices, located on the Pueblo
reservation.

The financial statements of the Department have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units, The Governmental
Accounting Standard Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Basic Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Department include the department-wide and the fund financial
statements. The focus is on the Department as a whole in the department-wide financial
statements, while reporting additional and detailed information about the Department's major
governmental funds in fund financial statements.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that basic
financial statements include (1) the primary government, (2) organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. These financial

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

statements present only the operations and financial position of the Department which are
accounted for in a general fund, grants and contracts funds, capital projects fund , debt service
fund, and internal service fund.

Department-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the
Department as a whole. The statements report governmental activities of the Department, which
are generally financed through Casino transfers, tax revenues, and grant proceeds.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the Department are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate reporting entity. The operations of each fund are summarized by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise jts assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The Department's resources
are allocated to and accounted for in separate funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be utilized and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The following represent the funds of the Department of the Puebio:

Governmental Funds:

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The
acquisition, use, and balances of the Department's expendable financial resources and the
related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus is on
determination of changes in financial position rather than on net income determination.

The following are the Department's major funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the primary operating fund of the Department and is
always classified as a major fund. The general fund is used to account for all the
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted
for in some other fund.

Grants and Contracts Fund - Grants and contracts fund is used fo account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are reserved to expenditures for certain
purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital
outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital faciliies and other capital
assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by
proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments. This fund does not meet the quantitative criteria to
be a major fund, however, the Department has elected to classify it as a major fund.

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

interest. This fund does not meet the quantitative criteria to be a major fund, however,
the Department has elected to classify it as a major fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the Department's ongoing activities that are similar to
those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is on determination of net
income. The following is the Department's proprietary fund type, which is not a major fund, and
is presented as "aggregate remaining”.

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds finance and account for the operations of
the Department's agencies that provide services to other units of the Pueblo on a cost
reimbursed basis. The funds are used to account for an indirect cost pool and a self-
insurance plan.

Measurement Focus
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the

various financial statements.

In the department-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, the governmental
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income or changes in
net position (or .cost recovery). All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is reported as net position.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All of the governmental fund types are accounted for using a current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities, generally, are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these
funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost
of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all liabilities {whether
current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are included within the statement of net
position. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenses and other financing uses) in total net position.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

In the department-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, governmental
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability
is incurred or the economic asset is used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the governmental funds for financial
statement purposes. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues and other fund
financial resource increments are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
susceptible to accrual - that is when they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the fiscal period. Available means collectible with in the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period {(within 60 days).

Revenues from grants and contracts that are restricted for specific uses are recognized as
revenues when the related costs are incurred.

Expenditures are recorded as liabilities when they are incurred. Expenditures charged to federal
programs are recorded utilizing the cost principles prescribed or permitted by the various
funding sources. Vacation pay is recorded as an expenditure when payable from current
available financial resources.

Budgetary Data

Budgets are established each year by the Tribal Council of the Pueblo resolution and are
employed as a management control device for certain expenditures of the general fund. General
fund revenues are not formally budgeted. However, the Tribal Council of the Pueblo considers
the amount of funds available in establishing budgets for expenditures. The budgets for grants
and contracts fund are those established in the grant or contract document. Such budgets are
prepared for the term of each grant and are not budgeted on an annual basis. The budget and
any revisions thereto must also be approved by the granting agencies. The Department funds
do not use encumbrance accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and cash on hand. The internal service
funds pool their cash with the other Department funds and do not hold cash balances on their
own behalf. For the purpose of reporting on the statement of cash flows, the Department
considers all cash in time deposits and other investments purchased with a maturity of three
months of the date acquired by the Department or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

All investments of the Department were held in mutual funds, mortgage backed securities, and
government backed securities as of December 31, 2014. Investments included on the
accompanying statement of net position are stated at fair market value in accordance with

(GASB standards.

See Independent Auditors' Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable represent general governmental receivables, employee advances, and
tribal loans. Receivables are reported net of pravision for doubtful accounts.

Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenues

Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the Department.
Consequently, timing differences between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist
at any time during the fiscal year. Amounts due from granting agencies at fiscal year-end
represent an excess of modified accrual basis expenditures over cash requirements received to
date. Conversely, unearned revenue balances represent an excess of cash advances over
modified accrual basis expenditures. Generally, amounts due from granting agencies or
unearned revenue balances caused by differences in the timing of cash reimbursements and
expenditures will be reversed in the remaining grant period.

Prepaids and Other Assets
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods after December 31, 2014 are recorded as
prepaid items consisting mainly of insurance and food commodities.

Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided

or services rendered and for cash received and paid. The related receivables and payables are
classified as due from other funds and due to other funds on the balance sheet for
governmental funds and statement of net position for proprietary funds.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external interfund transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in
the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined by the Department as assets with an initial, individual cost of more

than $5,000 and estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets acquired are
recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds. Additions, improvements, and other capital
outlays made by proprietary funds are capitalized in those funds. Maintenance and repair costs
are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 8 - 32 years
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 3 -7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability and reported in the department-wide staterent of net
position when the obligation arises. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

to be financed from expendable, available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of
governmental funds.

Equity Classifications
Department-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

1. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding principal
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets,

2. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by (a) external groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

3. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

Governmental Fund Balance

Fund Balance

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is classified and is displayed in five
components:

1. Nonspendable - Consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

2. Restricted - Consists of amounts that are restricted to specific purposes as a resuit of
(a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants) , granters,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.

3. Committed - Consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of
decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action (for example, legislation, resolution, ordinance) it employed to
previously commit those amounts.

4. Assigned - Consists of amounts that are constrained by the government's infent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. intent should be
expressed by (&) the governing body itself; or (b} a body (a budget or finance committee,
for example) or official to which the governing body has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

5. Unassigned - Represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and
that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund.

Grant Revenues

The Department recognizes grant revenues at the time that such revenues become available
and measurable, which is generally at the time such revenues are currently receivable. Receipts
in advance on cost reimbursable type contracts are deferred and are recognized as revenue
when allowable expenditures are incurred.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. They also include all revenues
and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing
activities. .

Indirect Costs

Indirect costs represent costs of administration and operation, including accounting costs, which
cannot be readily allocated to individual programs. These costs are paid from the Indirect Cost
Pool Internal Service Fund and allocated to programs, based on a negotiated Indirect Cost
Agreement. A rate of 25.30 was charged for the first six months of the fiscal year and 16.55
percent was charged for the last six months of the fiscal year. These rates were charged to all
grant programs, based on direct costs less any capital and flow-through costs, and was
negotiated with the National Business Center, United States Department of the Interior.

Federal and State Income Taxes

The Pueblo is treated as a sovereign nation and its commercial operations are exempt from all
income taxation imposed by the federal government, any state, or any political subdivision
thereof. Accordingly, there are no provisions for federal or state income taxes in the
accompanying financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at December 31, 2014:

Bank Carrying
Balance Balance
Demand Deposits $ 13,497,643 $ 13,060,444
Cash on Hand - 530
- Total $ 13497643 $__ 13060974
Reconciliation to Financial Statements:
Unrestricted $ 12,255,836
Restricted 805,138
Total 3 13,060,974

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the government's deposits may

not be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for credit risk. As of
December 31, 2014, the Pueblo's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and Uncollateralized $ 12,997,643
Uninsured and Collateral Held by Pledging Bank's

Trust Department Not in Pueblo’s Name 805,138

Total $ 13,802,781

Restricted Cash Consists of:

NMFA Deposits for Debt Service s 805138
NOTE 3 — INVESTMENTS

Investments that the Tribal Council has approved for investment are obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies not to exceed 10 years maturity, money market and mutual funds
with "AAA" ratings invested only in federal government or agency securities, or in repurchase
agreements fully coliateralized by such securiies.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

The following schedule details the investments held by the Department as of December 31,
2014, and the years to maturity:

LessThan1 1-5Years 6-10Years More Than 10 Total
Investments Held by Brokers:

Cash $ - 9% - 3 - 5 - § -
Unrealized Gains 67,664 67,664
Investments Held by BIA:

U.S. Treasury Overnighter 38,656,875 8,655,875

U.S. Gov'i-Backed Securities 4,182,037 4,182,037

Mortgage-Backed Securities - - - 2,018,718 2,018,718

Total Investments $ 87235638 3§ - 8 - $§ 6,200,753 $14,924,292

Investment Risks

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Department has
adopted an investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates or limits in investment
choices,

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty (e.g., brokers-dealer) to a transaction, the Department will not be able
to recover the value of its investment or collaterai securities that are in the possession of
another party. The Department has an investment policy that would limit the investments to the
safest type of securities. Financial institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors are
to be prequalified, and the investment portfolio is to be diversified so that potential losses on
individual securities will be minimized.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At December 31, 2014, accounts receivable consisted of the following:

Grants and Internal
General Contracts Service
Fund Fund Fund Totai

Employee Receivables $ 63,854 % - 5 - % 63,954
Tribal Member Loans 104,898 - - 104,898
Third-Party Billing, Net 1,051,913 88,932 - 1,140,845
Internal Service Fund Receivables - - - -
Other - - - -
Total Accounts Receivable 1,220,765 88,932 - 1,309,697
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (57,417) - - (67.,417)
Accounts Receivable, Net $ 1163348 $ 88932 % - $ 1,252,280

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 6§ - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The following is a summary of grants receivable by agency as of December 31, 2014:

Agency Amount
Department of Agriculture $ 241,150
Department of the Interior 6,821
Department of Justice 79,246
Environmental Protection Agency 75,435
Department of Health and Human Services 1,011,741
Nonfederal and Other Awards 47,011
Total Grants Receivable 1,461,404
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (331,646)
Grants Receivable, Net 3 1,129,758

NOTE 6 - UNEARNED REVENUE

The following is a summary of the grants and contracts fund unearned revenue by agency as of
December 31, 2014:

Agency Amount
Department of Agriculture $ 184,417
Depariment of the Interior 3,189,435
Department of Health and Human Services 3,531,641
Department of Transportation 1,251,297
Nonfederal and Other Awards 490,957
Total Unearned Revenue $ 8,647,747

Such amounts represent monies received in advance of expenditures.

Other unearned revenue is as follows:

Easement Agreement

The Pueblo renewed an easement agreement for an electrical transmission line through the
reservation. The renewal agreement is for 20 years starting November 2002. One payment of
$2,210,000 for the 20-year agreement was received in 2004, which was recorded as unearned
revenue and is being recognized as revenue over the life of the agreement. The Department
recognizes revenue annually over the term of the agreement at a rate of $110,500 per year. At
December 31, 2014, the balance of the unearned revenue was $994,500.

BIA Land Dispute
At December 31, 2014, the Pueblo has recorded $1,661,463 as unearned revenue relating to

funds held by the Bureau of Indian Affairs on behalf of the Puebio. The Pueblo is currently in a
dispute with a neighboring Pueblo over a land easement and the outcome of the dispute is
currently uncertain. The related funds are to be held by the Bureau of Indian Affairs until the

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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dispute is settled. Such amounts are presented with investments on the governmental fund

balance sheet.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in the governmental activities related capital assets is as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Infrastructure
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated (Net)
Capital Assets, Net

A summary of changes in the internal service funds' capital assets is as follows:

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Infrastructure
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets, Net

Ending
Beginning Balance
Balance January December. 31,
1, 2014 Additions Disposals 2014
$ 18484572 % - 3 - % 18,484,572
2,151,948 765,507 {(1.032,297) 1,885,159
20,636,521 765,507 (1.032,207) 20,369,731
9,636,742 - 396,436 10,033,178
- - 117,778 117,778
1,688,437 81,192 30,251 1,799,880
2,440,183 239,637 46,937 2,726,757
13,765,362 320,829 591,402 14,677,593
(6,264,434) (659,523) - {6,923 957)
7,500,928 (338,694} 591,402 7,753,636
$ 28137449 § 426,813 $  (440,895) $ 28,123,367
Ending
Beginning Balance
Balance December. 31,
January 1, 2014 Additions Disposals 2014
$ 4,646,900 $ - % - $ 4,646,900
10,533,811 - - 10,533,811
137,648 - - 137,648
58,679 - - 58,679
15,377,038 - - 15,377,038
{(1,5656,595) (482,552} - (2.039.147)
$ 13,820,443 3 (482,552) § - % 13,337,891

See Independent Auditors' Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Depreciation expense is not recorded in governmental funds. In the statement of activities,
assets are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (3 to 40 years).
Depreciation has been allocated to benefiting functions as follows:

Eunction Amount
General Government 3 253,402
Public Works 114,012
Education 95,916
Health and Welfare 196,193

Total Depreciation Expense 3 659,523

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in governmental fund long-term debt for the year ended
December 31, 2014:

Beginning Ending

Balance Balance
January 1, December. 31,

2014 Additions Payments 2014
Long-Term Debt:

New Mexico Finance Authority $ 8439924 % - §(463,900) $ 7,976,024
Current Portion (463,900} (493.405)
Long-Term Porticn $ 7,976,024 $ 7.482619

On July 20, 2007, the Pueblo entered into a loan agreement with the New Mexico Financing
Authority (the NMFA) for $10,854,786 to finance a wastewater treatment plant. The Depariment
makes monthly principal and interest payments into a restricted debt service account while the
NMFA makes semiannual bond payments from the Department's restricted accounts. The
monthly payments for principal will be based on one-twelfth of the amount necessary to pay the
next maturing principal component of the bond amount. $10,052,021 of the $1 0,854,786 loan
was put into the Department's program account while the remaining $802,765 was deposited
into a loan agreement reserve account held by the NMFA. The monthly payments for interest
and the administrative fee will be one-sixth of the amount necessary to pay the next maturing
interest component and administrative fee of the bond amount. A debt service account is held
on behalf of the Department by the NMFA in which each loan payment will be deposited into
until the time the bond payments are due where the NMFA will transfer the money from the debt
service account to the trustee prior to the payment date on the outstanding bonds. Interest on
the note is a blended rate of 4.005 percent. The loan is scheduled to mature in May 2027. The
loan is secured by all gas tax revenues of the Pueblo.

The loan agreement includes a covenant that the pledged revenues, on an ongoing basis during

each year of the loan agreement term, be reasonably expected to equal or exceed 130 percent
of the annual debt service. During 2014, the revenues were less than this 130 percent.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Future minimum payments required under the loan are as follows:

Administrative

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Fee Total
2015 $ 483405 $ 289815 % 19,138 §$ 802,358
2016 512,265 272,212 17,904 802,381
2017 532,099 253,683 16,624 802,406
2018 552,964 234,175 15,294 802,433
2019 574,885 213,666 13,911 802,462
2020-2024 3,241,882 724,117 46,807 4,012,806
2025-2027 2.068.524 117,727 7.556 2,193,808
Total $ 7976024 $ 2105395 $ 137,233 $ 10,218,652

As noted above, the Department has pledged specific revenues to repay the debt service of the
loan.

Pledged revenues as of December 31, 2014, were as follows:

Source of Current Year Current Year Total Future Terms of
Revenue Pledged Revenues Pledged Debt Service  Revenues Pledged Commitment
Gasoline Tax $ 519,331 $ 793660 $ 10,218,652 2027

NOTE 9 - INDIRECT COSTS

The Pueblo recovered $910,410 of indirect program costs for the year ended December 31,
2014. This was determined by applying the negotiated rate to applicable direct program costs
less any capital expenditures and pass-through funds, less any applicable indirect cost ceiling
amounts.

NOTE 10 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to and from Other Pueblo Entities:

The interfund accounts are primarily related to the submission of gaming and sales taxes from
the enterprises to the Pueblo. The Department also utilizes interfund accounts for temporary
borrowing between funds. Repayments are made periodically.

Due From Due To
General Fund $ 1418990 § -
Grants and Contracts Fund 800
Capital Projects Fund - 1,418,190
Total Transfers $ 1,418,990 $ 1,418,890

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Transfers:
The following is a summary of such transfers for the year ended December 31 , 2014:

Transfer in Transfers Qut
Generai Fund $ 222265 § 68,504
Grants and Contracts Fund - 222,265
Debt Service Fund 398,431 -
Capital Projects Fund - 329,927
Total Transfers $ 620,696 % 620,696

Other Transactions:

Casino:

The Casino is required to pay a percentage of net gaming revenues and other taxes to the
Department. These amounted to approximately $2,100,000 during the year ended December
31, 2014. These revenues are recorded as tax revenue on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds and the statement of
activities. The Casino also recorded approximately $1,000,000 to the Department related to its
portion of the costs associated with participation in the health insurance plan.

Travel Center:
The Travel Center is required to pay the Department a gross revenues sales tax on various

items, including cigarettes and gasoline. These taxes amounted to approximately $1,311,000
during the year ended December 31, 2014. These revenues are recorded as tax revenue on the
statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds and
the statement of activities.

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Department has adopted the Pueblo De San Felipe Retirement Savings Plan (the Plan).
Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after attaining age 21 and completing one year
of service. The Plan is a retirement savings plan administered by Aspen Pension
Administrators. The Plan requires employer contributions: however, the amount of the
contribution is at the Pueblo's discretion. The Pueblo has elected to contribute 5 percent for
each employee. Participants vest according to the following schedule:

Years of Credited Service  Percent Vested

1 20%
2 40%
3 60%
4 80%
5 100%

The Plan excludes from participation those employees who work less than 1,000 hours per year
or those employees who belong to a union that provides retirement benefits subject to collective
bargaining or contract negotiations. The Department's contributions to the Plan in 2014 were
approximately $205,830. There were no employee contributions to the Plan during 2014.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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NOTE 12 - POSSESSORY TAXES

The Pueblo assesses possessory taxes of 6 percent on personal property held by entities
having equipment on their reservation. The entities use the County of Bernalillo personal
property tax assessment form and remit it to the Pueblo in Qctober to November of each year.
The Pueblo calculates the tax and then assesses the entities. Taxes are due 30 days after the
assessment. Possessory fax revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014, was
approximately $192,498.

The possessory tax is computed in accordance with the method of valuation described in the
New Mexico Property Tax Code, NMSA Sections 7-36-1 to 33 (1978), and regulations adopted
pursuant to it.

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

During 2007, the Pueblo implemented a self-insurance program, which is managed by an
insurance management group and covers eligible employees of the Department, Casino, Travel
Center, Gaming Commission, and Housing Authority for medical coverage and hospitalization of
its employees. The Pueblo maintains a stop-loss policy, which limits the maximum liability to
$40,000 per person per year. Claim liabilities, where the Pueblo has retained the risk of loss,
are based on amounts necessary to pay prior and current year claims, and include estimates
based on claim history and payment pattern, for claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR).

The self-insurance program is accounted for in the internal service fund. Expenditures related to
employee health insurance premiums are charged to other funds based on established rates. A
reconciliation of the aggregate claim liabilities where the Pueblo retains the risk of loss is as
follows for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013
Claims Liability - Beginning of Year $ 166,443 $ 464,888
Incurred Claims and IBNR 1,250,159 1,532,170
Payments (2,040,227) (1,830,615)
Claims Liability - End of Year $ {623,625) % 166,443

The Pueblo is insured against losses related to general, property and auto liabilities, workers'
compensation, and employee medical claims. Settled claims have not exceeded the
Department's retention and excess coverage over the past three years.

NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Department's management has evaluated the events that have occurred subsequent to
fiscal year-end through July 7, 2016, the date when the financial statements were available to
be issued. Management has determined that no events have occurred during this period that
require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through

Federal CFDA

Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture
WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counseling 10.557 $ 40,946
wiC 10.557 386,794
WIC Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (FMNP) 10.572 7,151
Senior Famers' Market Nutrition Program 10.576 15,145
Passed Through the State of New Mexico
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 52,554
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 7,001

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 509,591
U.S. Department of the Interior
Consolidated Tribal Government Program - Family Services 15.021 $ 191,020
Consolidated Tribal Government Program - Education Program 15.021 119,767
Consolidated Tribal Government Program - Tribal Court 15.021 63,358
Consclidated Tribal Government Program - Enrollment 15.021 214,993
Agriculture and Range Management 15.034 85,683
Forestry on Indian Land 15.035 27,279
Early Childhood Special Education 15.043 63,104
BOR - Water Resources and Infrastructure Repair 15.519 599,359
Water Management / Water Litigation 16.024 67,697
HFR Non-WUI and HFR WUI 15.228 104,181

Total U.S. Department of the Interior $ 1,536,441
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Federal CFDA
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Justice

Rural Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault 16.589 $ 155116
Total U.S. Department of Justice $§ 155,116

U.S. Department of Transporation

Federal Highway Administration 20.205 $ 1,366,652
Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 1,366,652

Environmental Protection Agency

General Assistance 66.926 $ 229,975

Water Quality Management Planning 66.454 $ 65,783
Total Environmental Protection Agency $ 295758

31



THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through

Federal CFDA

Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Tital VI-B Child Welfare Social Services 93.645 $ 16,247
Family Violence Protection Services 93.671 8,048
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.047 16,428
Title VI - Elderly 93.217 165,407
Family Caregiver 93.217 41,246
NSIP 93.243 31,560
HMW Community Health Program 93.441 2,169,576
HiS Project 93. XXX 19,693
Medicaid CHIP Community Outreach & Enroliment 93.767 12,021
Passed Through the State of New Mexico
Special Diabetes Program 93.237 286,813
Children's Mental Health System 93.243 790,362
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 172,176
Head Start 93.600 895,892
Home Visiting Program 93.508 273,068
Injury Prevention 93.284 80,683
Youth Suicide Prevention Program 93.243 613,058

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 5,592,278

Total Federal Awards $ 9,455,836
Non-Federal and Other Awards
Language Revitalization Project N/A $ 17,547
NMIAA Indian Elderly N/A 157,618
School-Based Health Center Agreement N/A 55,672
New Mexico Transportation N/A 118,073
Hazard Emergency Readiness N/A 1,894
State Library GO Bonds N/A 102,865
TIF Comprehensive Master Plan N/A 57,032
Native American Professional Parent Resources N/A 34,478
Total Non-Federal and Other Awards 545177

Total Federal, Non-Federal and Other Expenditures
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

NOTE 1 — REPORTING ENTITY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Pueblo de San Felipe. It is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments
and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTE 2 — FEDERAL AWARD IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS

The federal granting agency is responsible for providing the Office with the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for each grant or contract. In cases where the federal
granting agency did not provide the CFDA number to the Office, other identifying numbers are
presented on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. In cases where the federal
granting agency did not provide this number to the Office and it was not otherwise determinable,
it is noted as “not available” on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

NOTE 3 ~ RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES

The following is a reconciliation of the expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards to the expenditures reported in the governmental fund financial statements:

Expenditures of federal awards $ 9,455,836
Expenditures funded by non-federal sources 545,177
Other Expenditures 7,101,079
Total Expenditures $ 17,102,092

NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS

The Department did not provide any federal awards to subrecipients during the year.
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KUBIAK MELTON & ASSOCIATES, LLC

AUDITORS - BUSINESS CONSULTANTS - CPAS

independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Members of the Tribal Council
Governor Michael T. Sandoval
The Pueblo de San Felipe

San Felipe Pueblo, New Mexico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major governmental fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Governmental Department (Department) of the Pueblo de San Felipe, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Department's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 7, 20186,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Department’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department's internal control.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material weaknesses:
FS 2013-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinicn on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Department’s Response to Findings

- The Department’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Department's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kubiak MeRdtn & Asaseiatan, Lr e

Kubiak, Melton & Associates, LLC
Albuquerque, New Mexico
July 7, 2016
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KUBIAK MELTON & ASSOCIATES. LLC
AUDITORS - BUSINESS CONSULTANTS - CPAS

independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Members of the Tribal Council
Governor Michael T. Sandoval
The Pueblo de San Felipe

8an Felipe Pueblo, New Mexico

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited the Governmental Department (Department) of the Pueblo de San Felipe's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Department’'s major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The Department's major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Department’'s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Department’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Department's
compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Helping Qur People: Advocate Hope

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Department did not
comply with requirements regarding CFDA: 93.243 Helping Our Peopie: Advocating Hope, as described
in finding number 2013-003 for matching. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our
opinion, for the Department to comply with the requirements applicable to the program,
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Qualified Opinion on Helping Our People; Advocate Hope

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on Helping our
People: Advocate Hope paragraph, the Department complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on Helping Our
People: Advocating Hope for the year ended December 31, 2014,

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, the Department complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs for the year ended December 31, 2014,

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as items FA 2013-003, FA 2014-001. FA 2014-002 and FA 2014-003.
Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

The Department’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Department's responses were not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the responses.

Report On Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Department is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Department’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effactiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Department's internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in infernal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the questioned
cost item FS 2013-003 to be a material weakness,

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We did not identify any significant
deficiencies.

The Department's responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Pueblo’s responses were
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report On Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major governmental fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Department as of and for the year ended December
31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department's
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated July 7, 2016, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circutar A-133 and is not a required part of the Department's financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the Department's financial statements as a whole.

Kubiok MeRton £ hasssiatin, LLC

Kubiak, Melton & Associates, LLC
Albuquerque, New Mexico
July 7, 2016
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of aUAItors’ report ISSUET:.............o.oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeooooeoooo Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses Identified?...............coeueveeeereeeeereeee oo Yes

Significant deficiencies Identified?..............cccevrvmveeeeeeeeeeeeees oo No

Noncompliance material to financial statements NOted? ...........o.ovooeeeoeoooeoe ] No
Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? ..................cocovvevnnnnn.... et e e Yes
Significant deficiencies identified? ..............oooeovooeeoeoeeeeeeeeeeoeeeoeeoeeoooo No

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
fOr MEJOr PIOGrAMS: ... oot Modified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
OF CITCUIAT A-1337 ..ttt e et Yes
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THE PUEBLO DE SAN FELIPE
GOVERNMENTAL DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Section | — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

15.021 Consolidated Tribal Government Program

15.519 BOR - Water Resources and Infrastructure Repair
20.205 Federal Highway Administration

93.243 Childrens Mental Health Systems

93.243 Youth Suicide Program

93.441 H/W Community Heaith Program

93.600 Headstart

Dollar threshoid used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: ...........co.ooeoveueeeeeeoeeeeeoeoeooeoeeeseoeo $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk AUAILEE?..............ocoveev oo No
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